EFFECTIVE: September 17, 2018

BYLAWS OF SHIRDI SAI TEMPLE OF CHARLOTTE

PURPOSE: Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte, SSTC, shall be a unique place to serve all members who believe and respect the Sai philosophy of service, preaching and rituals that help find the Sai Marg. The temple follows the spiritual teachings of Shri Shirdi Sai Baba, provides a place of worship for the devotees of Shri Sai Baba, and shall sponsor and support religious, cultural, educational and charitable activities in the United States and around the world. The mission of SSTC is to build the temple in Charlotte that mimic the temple premises similar to Sai temple in Shirdi, India, including Samadhi mandhir, Gurustan, Dwarakamai, Chavadi and Lendibhag.

ARTICLE I. Offices

The principal office of the nonprofit corporation ("corporation" also referred to herein as the "temple") shall be 2006 NC-218, Indian Trail, NC 28079 or <u>such other address as designated from time to time by the corporation</u>. The corporation may have such other offices, as the board of directors may designate or as the business of the corporation may require from time to time. The registered office of the corporation required by the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act and applicable laws to be maintained in North Carolina may be, but need not be, identical with the principal office, and the address of the registered office may be changed from time to time by the board of directors.

ARTICLE II. Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. All corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed under the direction of, its board of directors except as otherwise provided in the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act, applicable laws, or the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 2. Number, Qualifications, Board Composition, and Tenure.

- **a. Number.** The number of *Directors* of the corporation shall be fixed from time to time by the board of directors within a range of no less than **nine (9)** or no more than **fifteen (15)**, but an increase in the number of directors shall not have the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director.
- **b.** Eligibility. A *director* shall be a natural person who is twenty-one (21) years of age or older and must be a resident of North Carolina or South Carolina. The corporation seeks directors who believe in the mission and vision of the temple, our religion and worship of prayer. Prior to being elected as director, the individual shall have served as a volunteer for the temple for at least one year. All directors shall adhere to the Code of Conduct which is attached to these Bylaws as **Schedule** A. Schedule A is incorporated into this document for reference.

- **c. Board Composition.** It is the desire of the temple that the board of directors be representative of the temple community. Accordingly, the temple community should seek a composition of the board of directors which is as diverse as the temple community itself. The board of directors shall be comprised of no less than twenty percent (20%) female directors with the goal of fifty percent (50%) female and fifty percent (50%) male.
- **d. Tenure.** Board of Directors shall be elected at each **annual meeting of directors** which occurs in the **month of December**. Each director shall hold office for a term of two (2) years with an exception of 4 years for the first ever SSTC Board of Directors team formed in December 2017. The two-year term shall expire at the second annual meeting in the **month of December** following the director's election to office. Any director may be removed by vote of the board of directors with a cause at a meeting called for that purpose. The notice of the meeting shall state that the purpose or one of the purposes of the meeting is removal of the director. A director may be removed only **with 90%** vote of the board of directors in favor of removal. A director shall **not** be allowed to serve more than two (2) successive terms of service as a director.
- **e. Vacancies:** Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the President or Board of directors. Such resignation shall take effect at the time the notice is received by the President or BoD unless the notice specifies a later effective date. Unless otherwise specified in the notice of resignation, BoD's careful review and acceptance of such resignation shall be necessary to make it effective. Any vacancy on the board of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors at a special meeting called for that purpose. If elected by the directors, the director shall hold office until the next annual meeting at which directors are elected.

Section 3. Meetings

- **a. Regular Meetings.** Regular meetings of the board of directors shall be held **once a month** at a time and place as determined by the board of directors for the purpose of electing officers and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the board of directors before the meeting. The board of directors may provide by resolution the time and place of regular meetings, within North Carolina, for the holding of additional regular meetings. Such a resolution constitutes notice of future regular meetings.
- **b. Special Meetings.** Special meetings of the board of directors may be called by or at the request of any two Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the board of directors may fix any place, within the close proximity of Charlotte, North Carolina, as the place for holding any special meeting of the board of directors called by them.
- **c. Notice.** Notice of the date, time, and place of any special meeting shall be given to each director at least five (5) days prior to the meeting by written notice either personally delivered or mailed to each director at the director's address, or by notice transmitted by private courier, electronically transmitted facsimile, email or other similar form of communication. If a director has designated in writing one or more reasonable addresses, email addresses for delivery of notice to the director, notice sent by mail or email shall not be deemed to have been given or to be effective unless sent to such addresses.

A director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the time and date of the meeting by a writing signed by such director. Such waiver shall be delivered to the BoD for filing with the corporate records,

but such delivery and filing shall not be conditions to the effectiveness of the waiver. Further, a director's attendance at or participation in a meeting waives any required notice to the director of the meeting unless, at the beginning of the meeting or promptly upon the director's later arrival, the director objects to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting because of lack of notice or defective notice and does not thereafter vote for or assent to action taken at the meeting. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the board of directors need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting.

Section 4. Quorum. A 2/3rd majority of the number of directors fixed by the board of directors pursuant to Article II, Section 2 or, if no number is fixed, a majority of the number in office immediately before the meeting begins shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the board of directors.

Section 5. Telephonic Meetings. The board of directors may permit any director (or any member of a committee designated by the board) to participate in a regular or special meeting of the board of directors or a committee thereof through the use of any means of communication by which all directors participating in the meeting can hear each other during the meeting. A director participating in a meeting in this manner is deemed to be present in person at the meeting.

Section 6. Manner of Acting. The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the board of directors. The board of directors may adopt rules through resolution as necessary to govern the conduct of its meetings.

Section 7. Compensation. Directors shall receive no compensation for their services.

Section 8. Presumption of Assent. A director of the corporation who is present at a meeting of the board of directors or committee of the board at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to all action taken at the meeting unless: (i) the director objects at the beginning of the meeting, or promptly upon the director's arrival, to the holding of the meeting or the transaction of business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to any action taken at the meeting; (ii) the director contemporaneously requests that the director's dissent or abstention as to any specific action taken be entered in the minutes of the meeting; or (iii) the director causes written notice of the director's dissent or abstention as to any specific action to be received by the presiding officer of the meeting before its adjournment or by the BoD promptly after the adjournment of the meeting. A director may dissent to a specific action at a meeting while assenting to others. The right to dissent to a specific action taken at a meeting of the board of directors or a committee of the board shall not be available to a director who voted in favor of such action.

Section 9. Committees. By resolution adopted by a majority of all the directors in office when the action is taken, the board of directors may designate from among its members an **Executive Committee** and one or more **other committees** and appoint one or more members of the board of directors to serve on them. The **Executive Committee** shall be governed as provided for in these bylaws. Each **other committee** shall have only the authority granted to it by the board of directors.

a. **Executive Committee**. The Executive Committee shall be comprised members from Board of Directors who have been elected as officers for the board of directors. In addition, the committee may

elect any other individuals to serve and advise the Executive Committee such as an executive officer for the temple or business manager as deemed appropriate by the Executive Committee. Such individuals shall not be considered voting members of the Executive Committee or board of directors.

The Executive Committee shall provide organizational direction for the board of directors, including strategic planning for the corporation and advising the board of directors in decision making. The Executive Committee shall set the agenda items for board of director meetings.

b. Other Committees. The board of directors by resolution may designate certain committees to carry out necessary business and affairs of the corporation. Such committees may include, by example only, a committee for operations. The board may appoint a director or other qualified non-director as committee lead for each respective committee who shall be accountable to the directors for all matters under the purview of the resolved committee.

Section 10. Conflicts of Interest. If any person who is a director, officer, or agent of the corporation is aware that the corporation is about to enter into any business transaction directly or indirectly with such person, any member of that person's family, or any entity in which that person has any legal, equitable or fiduciary interest or position, including without limitation as a director, officer, shareholder, partner, beneficiary or director, such person shall (a) immediately inform those charged with approving the transaction on behalf of the corporation of such person's interest or position, (b) aid the persons charged with making the decision by disclosing any material facts within such person's knowledge that bear on the advisability of such transaction from the standpoint of the corporation, and (c) not be entitled to vote on the decision to enter into such transaction.

Section 11. Standard of Care. A director shall perform the director's duties as a director, including, without limitation, the director's duties as a member of any committee of the board, in good faith, in a manner the director reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation, and with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances. In performing the director's duties, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared or presented by the persons herein designated. However, the director shall not be considered to be acting in good faith if the director has knowledge concerning the matter in question that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted. A director shall not be liable to the corporation for any action the director takes or omits to take as a director if, in connection with such action or omission, the director performs the director's duties in compliance with this Section 12.

The designated persons on whom a director is entitled to rely are (i) one or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented, (ii) legal counsel, public accountant, or other person as to matters that the director reasonably believes to be within such person's professional or expert competence, or (iii) a committee of the board of directors on which the director does not serve if the director reasonably believes the committee merits confidence.

ARTICLE III. Officers and Agents

Section 1. General. The officers or agents of the corporation shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary, Joint Secretary, Treasurer, and Joint Treasurer, each of whom shall be appointed by the board of directors and shall be a natural person twenty-one (21) years of age or older. In order to become eligible to be an officer for the corporation, an individual shall have served on the board of directors for one year.

Section 2. Appointment and Term of Office. The officers of the corporation shall be appointed by the board of directors at each annual meeting in the month of December or at such other time as deemed necessary by the board of directors. Each officer shall hold office for a term of Two (2) years, except that the first duly appointed officers of the corporation shall hold office for a term of four (4) years. An officer may be reelected, or elected to a different office in successive years, but other than the initial officers appointed by the board of directors, no officer shall be allowed to serve as an elected officer more than three (3) successive years.

Note: The limitation on holding office for no more than three (3) successive years is necessary due to the requirement that any officer shall have served on the board of directors for one year prior to holding office and the additional limitation that no member of the board of directors shall serve more than four (4) successive years under Article II, Section 2, Subsection d.

Section 2. Resignation and Removal. An officer may resign at any time by giving written notice of resignation to BoD. The resignation is effective when the notice is received unless the notice specifies a later effective date. Any officer or agent may be removed at any time, with or without a cause, by the board of directors or an officer or officers authorized by BoD.

Section 3. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office, however occurring, may be filled by the board of directors, or by the officer or officers authorized by the board, for the unexpired portion of the officer's term. If an officer resigns and the officer's resignation is made effective at a later date, the board of directors, or officer or officers authorized by the board, may permit the officer to remain in office until the effective date and may fill the pending vacancy before the effective date if the board of directors, or officer or officers authorized by the board, provide that the successor shall not take office until the effective date. In the alternative, the board of directors, or officer or officers authorized by the board of directors, may remove the officer at any time before the effective date and may fill the resulting vacancy.

Section 5. President of the Board of Directors. The President shall (i) preside at all meetings of the board of directors and executive committee; (ii) be the chief administrative officer of the corporation and have general and active control of its affairs and business and general supervision of its officers, agents and employees; (iii) see that all orders and resolutions of the board of directors are carried into effect; and (iv) perform all other duties incident to the office of President of the board and as from time to time may be assigned to the President by the board of directors. The President shall have such additional authority and duties as are appropriate and

customary for the office of President and chief executive officer except as the same may be expanded or limited by the board of directors from time to time and by delegation of duties by the President to committees such as oversight, operations, and other committees as provided for under these bylaws.

Section 6. Vice President. The vice president shall assist the President and shall perform such duties as may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the board of directors. The vice president shall work under the direction and supervision of the President of the board and the board of directors. In the absence of the President of the board, the vice president shall preside at all meetings of the board of directors and executive committee. As directed by the President, he or she shall see that all orders and resolutions of the board of directors are carried into effect perform all other duties incident to the office of vice president and as from time to time may be assigned to the vice president by the board of directors or President. In the absence of the President, the vice president, shall have the powers and perform the duties of the President.

Section 7. Secretary. The secretary shall (i) keep the minutes of the proceedings of the board of directors and any committees of the board; (ii) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provision of these bylaws or as required by law; (iii) be custodian of the all official records and of the seal of the corporation and be part of the operation of the corporation; and (iv) in general, perform all duties incident to the office of secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the secretary by the President or by the board of directors.

Section 8. Joint Secretary. The Joint Secretary shall assist the Secretary and shall perform such duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Secretary or by the board of directors. The Joint Secretary shall work under the direction and supervision of the Secretary and the BoD. In the absence of the Secretary, the Joint secretary will act as Secretary and shall perform all duties of Secretary as mentioned in Section 7 of Article III.

Section 9. Treasurer. The treasurer shall (i) be the principal financial officer of the corporation and have the care and custody of all its funds, principal signatory to bank account and securities, evidences of indebtedness and other personal property and deposit the same in accordance with the instructions of the board of directors; (ii) receive and give receipts and acquaintances for moneys paid in on account of the corporation, and pay out of the funds on hand all bills, payrolls and other just debts of the corporation of whatever nature upon maturity; (iii) unless there is a controller, be the principal accounting officer and as such prescribe and maintain the methods and systems of accounting to be followed, keep complete books and records of account, prepare and file all local, state and federal tax returns and related documents, keep devotees donation prescribe and maintain an adequate system of internal audit, and prepare and furnish to the President and the board of directors statements of account showing the financial position of the SSTC and the results of its operations; (iv) upon request of the board, make such reports to it as may be required at any time; and (v) perform all other duties incident to the office of treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the treasurer by the President or the board of directors. Nothing prescribed above with regard to the duties of the officers shall

limit the board of directors from utilizing the professional services of certified public accountants or other professionals or professional companies as deemed necessary by the board of directors.

Section 10. Joint Treasurer. The Joint Treasurer shall assist the Treasurer and shall perform such duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Treasurer or by the board of directors. The Joint Treasurer shall work under the direction and supervision of the Treasurer and the BoD. In the absence of the Treasurer, the Joint Treasurer will act as Treasurer and shall perform all duties of Treasurer as mentioned in Section 9 of Article III.

ARTICLE IV. Indemnification of Certain Persons

Section 1. Indemnification.

Arbitration: Should there be a conflict among the members of the BoD, such conflicts should be resolved by the method of arbitration. Every effort should be made to result in the amicable solution, but in the event if it should result in the financial agreement, then the cost of the benefits and the arbitration fee should not exceed \$1500.00

For purposes of this Article IV, a "Proper Person" means any person (including the estate or personal representative of a director) who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, and whether formal or informal, by reason of the fact that the Proper Person is or was a director, officer, employee, fiduciary, or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee, fiduciary, or agent. The corporation shall indemnify any Proper Person against reasonably incurred expenses (including attorney's fees), judgments, penalties, fines, and amounts paid in settlement reasonably incurred by the Proper Person in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding if it is determined by majority vote of the board of directors that the Proper Person conducted herself or himself in good faith and that the Proper Person reasonably believed: (i) in the case of conduct in the Proper Person's official capacity with the corporation, that the Proper Person's conduct was in the corporation's best interests; (ii) in all other cases (except criminal cases), that the Proper Person's conduct was at least not opposed to the corporation's best interests; or (iii) in the case of any criminal proceeding, that the Proper Person had no reasonable cause to believe the Proper Person's conduct was unlawful. Official capacity means, when used with respect to a director, the office of director and, when used with respect to any other Proper Person, the office in a corporation held by the officer or the employment, fiduciary, or agency relationship undertaken by the employee, fiduciary, or agent on behalf of the corporation. Official capacity does not include service for any other domestic or foreign corporation or other person or employee benefit plan.

Section 2. Right to Indemnification. The corporation shall indemnify any Proper Person who was wholly successful, on the merits or otherwise, in defense of any action, suit, or proceeding as to which the Proper Person was entitled to indemnification under Section 1 of this Article IV against expenses (including attorney's fees) reasonably incurred by the Proper Person in connection with the proceeding without the necessity of any action by the corporation other than the determination in good faith that the defense has been wholly successful.

Section 3. Effect of Termination of Action. The termination of any action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or upon a plea of *nolo contendere* or its equivalent shall not of itself create a presumption that the person seeking indemnification did not meet the standards of conduct described in Section 1 of this Article IV. Entry of a judgment by consent as part of a settlement shall not be deemed an adjudication of liability as described in Section 2 of this Article IV.

Section 4. Advance of Expenses. Reasonable expenses (including attorney's fees) incurred in defending an action, suit, or proceeding as described in Section 1 may be paid by the corporation to any Proper Person in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit, or proceeding upon receipt of: (i) a written affirmation of such Proper Person's good-faith belief that the Proper Person has met the standards of conduct prescribed by Section 1 of this Article V; (ii) a written undertaking, executed personally or on the Proper Person's behalf, to repay such advances if it is ultimately determined that the Proper Person did not meet the prescribed standards of conduct (the undertaking shall be an unlimited general obligation of the Proper Person but need not be secured and may be accepted without reference to financial ability to make repayment); and (iii) a determination made by majority vote of the board of directors that the facts as then known to the group would not preclude indemnification.

Section 5. Witness Expenses. The sections of this Article IV do not limit the corporation's authority to pay or reimburse expenses incurred by a director in connection with an appearance as a witness in a proceeding at a time when the director has not been named as a defendant or respondent in the proceeding.

ARTICLE V. Provision of Insurance

Section 1. Provision of Insurance. By action of the board of directors, notwithstanding any interest of the directors in the action, the corporation may purchase and maintain insurance, in such scope and amounts as the board of directors deems appropriate, on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee, fiduciary, or agent of the corporation, or who, while a director, officer, employee, fiduciary, or agent against any liability asserted against, or incurred by, such person in that capacity or arising out of such person's status as such whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of Article V or applicable law. Any such insurance may be procured from any insurance company designated by the board of directors of the corporation, whether such insurance company is formed under the laws of North Carolina or any other jurisdiction of the United States or elsewhere, including any insurance company in which the corporation has an equity interest or any other interest, through stock ownership or otherwise.

ARTICLE VI. Membership

Section 1. Eligibility.

a. A *Member* shall be a natural person who is twenty-one (21) years of age or older and must be a resident of either North or South Carolina and follow the guidelines "Shradha and Saburi" of Sadguru Shirdi Sai Baba.

- b. Membership in the Temple is encouraged to provide you an opportunity to participate in major decisions and to jointly create an excellent place of worship and spiritual learning for current and future generations.
- c. Many donations to the temple can be counted towards membership.
- d. Donations made towards membership fulfilment must be made in accordance to applicable laws of both federal and state pertinent to nonprofit organization.
- e. Persons who elect to pay their membership dues in installments are not recognized as members until membership dues are fully paid.
- f. All the member names shall automatically be published on website and/or temple notice board unless a member has any objection.
- g. Corporations, LLC's, trusts, professional associations and any other organizations are not eligible to be members in any of the membership category.
- h. All donations and membership fees are nonrefundable.
- i. Trustee, Patron and Grand Patron Members are together classed as Donor Members and are eligible to seek positions in the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee. Life Members are eligible to serve in the Executive Committee and become officers of the Temple. Regular members can be appointed as executive committee members or as chair persons of sub-committees.
- j. To become a member, please fill out the Membership Form available online, sign it and mail it or bring it to the temple together with a check for the appropriate level of membership currently available.

Section 2. Membership Levels.

- a. Regular Membership: This class of memberships is valid for one fiscal year. It is renewable every year. Membership is \$100 and is to be paid in a lump sum.
- b. Life Membership: Membership is \$1,000 and is to be paid over one fiscal year either in lump sum or monthly equal recurring installments.
- c. Trustee Membership: Membership is \$5,000 and is to be paid over 2 fiscal years either in lump sum or monthly equal recurring installments. This category is valid only till December 31, 2018.
- d. Patron Membership: Membership is \$5,000 and is to be paid over 2 fiscal years either in lump sum or monthly equal recurring installments.
- e. Grand Patron Membership: Membership is \$10,000 and is to be paid over three fiscal years either in lump sum or monthly equal recurring installments.
- f. Founder Membership: Membership is \$50,000 and is to be paid over 3 fiscal years, either in lump sum or in up to five installments. This category is valid only till the completion of Phase Temple Construction.

Section 3. Membership upgrade. Membership can be upgraded from one class to another, by payment of the difference in membership dues, in one fiscal year.

ARTICLE VII. Assets

Section 1: All assets (real estate, personal property, Baba Ornaments, Electronic items, Pooja items, Bank deposits, Movable and immovable properties and etc) of Shirdi Sai temple of Charlotte should be under full control of BoD. The Temple land located at 2006 NC-218, Indian Trail, NC 28079 is belonging to SSTC and should never be sold nor partitioned/divided for any reasons.

Section 2: In order to protect SSTC assets from any kind of lawsuits, BoD shall apply for and maintain 501(c2) status with IRA.

Section 3: All Financial accounts, Social Media Website and any other administrative rights should be under full control of BoD.

ARTICLE VIII. Advisory Board

Section 1. Advisory **Board Membership.** Advisory Board shall always work towards SSTC mission, guide BoD towards SSTC goal and would help BoD in resolving conflicts and unforeseen situations. Advisory Board membership is an Honorary Membership and may be offered to spiritual leaders who propagate the Universal Shirdi Sai Principles, persons who are recognized for their outstanding service to community and to persons who are well known in the community for their good character, reputation, have influencing skills to seek advice from. Advisory Board Memberships are recommended by the Board of Directors and need to be approved by of $2/3^{rd}$ majority of Donor Members (Patrons, Trustees and Grand Patrons). Advisory Board Members do not have any voting rights, legal responsibilities and they do not participate in strategic planning and long-term decision-making process. Advisory Board Membership is given to individuals, and spouses of the Advisory Board Members are not considered Advisory Board Members. Once elected, Advisory Board Members will remain for 3 years with an exception of founder Members.

Section 2. Founders. By default, all Founders Members are part of SSTC Advisory board for life time or until they decide not to be. SSTC shall recognize the three founders who started, with a great vision, the initiative of building a Shirdi Saibaba Temple in Charlotte similar to the original temple in Shirdi, by placing a Plaque on temple wall

ARTICLE IX. Miscellaneous

Section 1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be as established by the board of directors.

Section 2. Amendments. The board of directors shall have power, to the maximum extent permitted by the North Carolina Nonprofit Corporation Act and applicable laws to make, amend, and repeal the bylaws of the corporation at any regular or special meeting of the board.

Section 3. Conflicts. In the event of any irreconcilable conflict between these bylaws and either the corporation's Articles of Incorporation or applicable law, the latter shall control.

{signature pages follow}

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 64 day of 6 10 2018.

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:

I, Shridhar Ramireddy, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.

Approved this 04 day of extoler, 2018

STATE OF North Carolina - COUNTY OF Mecklenburg

I, Susan Helms Broome, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that certify that Shridhar Ramireddy personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this 4th day of September, 2018.

Susan Helms Broome Notary Public, North Carolina Mecklenburg County My Commission Expires April 14, 2021

My Commission Expires: April 14, 2021

and the state of the

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 18 day of Sept., 2018.
Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:
I, Sreekar Reddy Annadi, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.
Approved this Lett day of Scot., 2018 Approved this Lett day of Scot., 2018 Signature of Member of Beard of Directors
STATE OF NOTH (MTOL) MA COUNTY OF CADOMUS
I, Now Down State aforesaid, certify that Certify that Certify that Sreekar Reddy Annadi personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.
Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this \(\ldots \) day of September, 2018.
My Commission Expires: My Commission Expires 6-26-2019 Notary Public
Notary Public
My commission Expires 2

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this	day of	SEP	2018.
---	--------	-----	-------

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:

1. Venugopala Rao, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.

Approved this 17 day of Sep . 2018

STATE OF <u>NORTH Carolica</u> - COUNTY OF <u>Meablembura</u>

1. Denice Harnes, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that certify that Venugopala Rao personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.

Witness my hand and Notorial stamp or seal, this <u>VV</u> day of September, 2018.

My Commission Expires: 11/7/2022

DENISE HOLMES Notary Public - North Carolina Meckleriburg County My Cerrification Expires 11/07/2022

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 17 day of 2018.
Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:
I. Veera Satyanaraya Thota, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.
Approved this 17 day of 09. 2018
Approved this 17 day of 09.2018 Signature of Member of Board of Directors
STATE OF North Cacolina - COUNTY OF Mechler G
that certify that Veera Satyanaraya Thota personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.
Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or scal, this <u>\\T\</u> day of September, 2018.
My Commission Expires: 11 2022 Notary Public
DENISE HOLMES Notary Public - North Carolina Mecklenburg County My Commission Expires 11/07/2022

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sal Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 18 day of 2018.

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:

I. Prunitha Reddy Mallipeddi, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.

Approved this 18 day of 2018

Signature of Member of Board of Directors

both Coroling COUNTY OF Mecklenbers

I, CARREN MALS BOOM, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Prunitha Reddy Mallipeddi personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed,

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this $\pm \Sigma$ day of September, 2018.

My Commission Expires: Dec. 2620 8

CARMEN MALSBURY

Notary Public Mecklenburg Co., North Carolina My Commission Expires Dec. 26, 2018

Notary Public

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 18 day of Section 2018.

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:

I, Hari Chagantipati, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.

Approved this 18 day of September 2018

Signature of Member of Board of Directors

STATE OF North Combina - COUNTY OF Mecklenburg

I. Alexus 5 Kirking, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that certify that Hari Chagantipati personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this 18¹⁴ day of September, 2018.

My Commission Expires: 2/19/22

ALEXUS S KIRKLEY
Notary Public, North Carolina
Macklenburg County
My Commission Expires

Ales S. Kirly Notary Public THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 20 day of September 2018.

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be excepted, attached and incorporated by teference in the following format:

I. Anitha Vojjala, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these hylaws. I hereby state that I have read the hylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule 1) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylows as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors

Approved this 2 Oday of September 2018

And the Voltage

Signature of Member of Board pull prectors

STATE OF Aurth Cultures - COUNTY OF MECKLEDOUTS

1. <u>Terebart A Brive Met</u>, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Anitha Vojjala personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing insumment for the purposes therein expressed.

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or scal, this |ZU| day of September, 2018

My Commission Expires. Of /10/2021

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 22 day of octobers, 2018.

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:

1. Anjappa Tammanagari, as a member of the Advisory board for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.

Approved this 28 day of 0005,2018

Signature of Member of Fourd of Directors

STATE OF North Carolina - COUNTY OF Mechlenburg.

I. Craisboso Treveria, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Anjappa Tammanagari personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this day of September, 2018.

My Commission Expires: 11 30 3031

Notary Public

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 30th day of November , 2018. Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format: I. Prasad Chada, as a member of the Advisory board for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors. Approved this 30th day of November. 2018 Signature of Member of Board of Directors STATE OF NC - COUNTY OF Gaston I. Rajeth B. Patel , the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that certify that Prasad Chada personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed. Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this 30th day of September. 2018. My Commission Expires: 4/20/2023

OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - North Carolina
GASTON COUNTY
RAJESH B, PATEL

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 14 day of SEPTEMBER 018.

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:

I, Radha Krishna Reddy Kaluvai, as a member of the Advisory board for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.

Approved this 14 day of 56 PT . 2018

L. Ralbaly

Signature of Member of Board of Directors

STATE OF Horsh Carolina - COUNTY OF Wedell

North Carolina - COUNTY OF Wedell

Thanne C-Eller, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that certify that Radha Krishna Reddy Kaluvai personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this 4th day of September, 2018.

My Commission Expires: 9/19/2020

DIANNE C ELLER

Notary Public iredell Co., North Carolina My Commission Expires Sept. 19, 2020

THESE BYLAWS of Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte are adopted this 16 day of November 2018.

Signatures of the adopting members of the Board of Directors shall be executed, attached and incorporated by reference in the following format:

I, Sridhar Parepalli, as a member of the board of directors for Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte have received a copy of these bylaws. I hereby state that I have read the bylaws which include the Code of Conduct (Schedule A) for the board of directors. With my signature, I approve the bylaws as stated herein and pledge to abide by and adhere to all provisions included the Code of Conduct for the board of directors.

Approved this 6 day of November 2018

Signature of Member of Board of Directors

STATE OF North Carolinacountry of Mecklonburg

I, Anekska P. Shah, the undersigned Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Certify that Sridhar Parepalli personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein expressed.

Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal, this 16 day of September, 2018

November

My Commission Expires: Tune 12th, 2021

Notary Public

APEKSHA P SHAH
Notary Public
Mecklenburg Co., North Carolina
Ay Commission Expires June 12, 2021

Schedule A

Shirdi Sai Temple of Charlotte ("SSTC") Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors

As a member of the board of directors, each director pledges to the following:

- 1. Director shall take care of the SSTC by ensuring prudent use of all assets, including facility, people, and good will; and provide oversight for all activities that advance the SSTC's effectiveness and sustainability;
- 2. To avoid the conflict of interest neither the Director nor the officers nor the agents must not be serving on any similar religious 501c(3) organization ay any capacity or role.
- 3. Director shall make decisions in the best interest of the SSTC, not in his or her self-interest.
- 4. Director shall ensure that the SSTC follows applicable laws and acts in accordance with ethical practices; that the SSTC adheres to its stated corporate purposes, and that its activities advance its mission and vision:
- 5. Director shall evaluate financial policies as a fiduciary of SSTC in the oversight of the nonprofit's finances, including approval of annual budgets, and review periodic financial reports to ensure that the organization has the necessary resources to carry out its mission and remains accountable to its donors and the general public;
- 6. Director shall work in good faith with other directors, advisors and volunteers of SSTC as well as all members of the SSTC community.
- 7. Director acknowledges and accepts that there is no room for discrimination of any kind including but not limited to discrimination based upon sex, gender, national origin, race, caste, age, or disability;
- 8. Director acknowledges and accepts that SSTC has zero tolerance policy and if any member or advisor or volunteer is found in violation of SSTC policy, the board upon recommendation from the grievance committee will have the right to expel the director from the board, the advisory council, and/or any volunteer group;
- 9. Director will excuse himself/herself from discussions and votes where there is a conflict of interest:
- 10. Director agrees to perform the duties as assigned by the BoD from time to time and for any reason, if he or she is unable to perform, the BoD should be promptly informed;
- 11. Director agrees to maintain the confidentiality of certain board discussion and/or documentation and will refrain from discussing such confidential information and/or disclosing such information to third parties.